Oct. 16, 1935,

Dear William:

I was glad to get your interesting lebtter of Aug.,
29, I have not yet received the finsncial report, but assume it
5 on 1ts way or will be sent soon. The news abeut the 3Jchonl
tself is most pleasant, particularly that the summer session
was s0 profituble, I am distressed, however, when I think of
211l ithe time and energy Ruth must hsve expended while acting
again as housekeeper of the School. It would have been nice ,
if she could have devoted all of her time to her most immedliate
personal interests. However, her loss is our gain. I was
narticularly glad %o hear that you are putting the School into
tip~top ghvszeml shape hefore lea?ln@ at the end of December.
The more you do now, the better i will ba for the near future
of the 3c¢hool.

I agree moset thoroughly that the Summer uchoal
ghould be taken over by the School as & part of its organiza-
tion and curr?c&lum in the future. I am convinced that Moon

gould handle the organization and ftravel of the Summer School
at least as well, if indeed not much more efficieﬁtly than
Jdackson. It would he quite a relief fto our genersl treasury,
if the Samer SGhaol recelpts could nrawi@@ @ar a large portion
of Moon's salary. With the growth of onr organization, his -
gervices nre becoming more and more indispensable, On the
other hand, the condition of our financial resources requires
that we hﬂsh&ﬁ& them mogt carefu’ly, and that we reach out

for every possible source of income. #e have finally reached

st Tinancial impasse,

I spent moat of last night, and all of this morning
working over our finances, snd I am slarmed. If Barton has
explained the situation to me corrsctly, we can only alloecate
@32,ou0 from the Rockefeller Foundation for our 1936-1937
budget, which I am now btrying %o prepare, and in 1937 proper
we receive nothing from the Foundaticne. I have written to
Burrows, urging what I recommended last December that lmmedi-
ate cont et be made with the Rockeleller Foundation to see
what can be done for the future, is it is, I 7ind that I can-
not prepare & budget to cover our normal restricted activities,
even diregarding the appropriation of another 370L00 for Tepe
uawrs in the 1936-7 budget to m&%eh the sprropriation made in
our last budget, and dlreg:rding for the nonce the guestion of
g reduction of Fisher's salary or of & jension, or of anything
for him, There are only t.o0 ways out of the dirficalty at the .
present, and I shall oppose both of them most strenucusly. One
is to ineclude in the budget income from corporaiion and mem=-

rchip dunes and Trom investments, which we have teen putting
imto the endowment fund, and wkjch is mwﬁeh&d by a like sum

from the Rockefeller Foundation. Thus if we ue sed bhe approxi-
mately $16,000 total ncome from these sources whieh we have
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been diverting to the endowment fund, i+t would mean Toregoing
another 510,000 from the Rockf. qunéatiﬁn, which we could

have at the end of 1936. The other way would be to dig into

our capital. However, I am against that becsuse with the nec,
replacement of some c? our holdings with bonds yielding less
income than previously, our net 5meome is going %o be somewhat
reduced anyway; and heszides, I think we would have t0o secure
the consent of the Rockefeller Foundation. If the worst cones
t0 pass, and we ought to envisage such & situation, for the
19371938 budget the Schools will have & total income of about
$10,000 from all sources. If conditions continue to improve

in this coantry, there may be some positive results from our
Indowment Campalgn, and the ﬁocwefﬂll&r soundation may possibly
renew its granks %0 us. As ﬁraaaurcr. however, 1% 1ls my business
to watch the funds we have, and my moito is: "Auf das Peste
hoffen, aber auf @&ﬁ Schlimmsate @F&%s? gein®, ‘

~ Th JPOS XV,1-2 which has Jjust come in i1s a grand is-
sue, Sukenik's monograph is superb, Thanks fTor teking care of
the ¥ilwa notes in the issue of the JP0S. An article on el-
Hammeh, which was in page proof for the AJA almost a year ago,
and *han bacause of gpace or finances was not published, has
Just appeared in the last issue of the AJA in & botched form,
because the plates had o be readapted to the present issue.
They have sent me no reprinis. I am glad to lear that the Bethd
volume will be ready for the press soon, and tha% the Gibeah II,
Ader, and Petrs pubjzaﬁtionq sare on thelir way towmrds comple-
tione I am now reading paze proof for the Edom article. 1t
was reassuring to read your comment on Alt's work Aus der 'Arse
ba I1-IV ir Bulletin 59, He is completely wrong with rega
F0 the Roman origin of the carsmanserals in the 'Arabah, His
article appeared too lete for me Lo answer him in the body of
ny Edom paper, but I did take issue with him in an Addendum.
In connection with your review of Abel's Geographie... in the
JPQS you will be inferested Lo krnow that & close examination
of all the biblicsl passeges Indicating that Seir-Edom is on
the west side of the ’Arnbah shows beyond all doubt that every
one of them ls X=x . " ycst-syilic in origin and had not
- Idumgea and not the preaxi)ic Edom in pind., I have considered
these passages in a lengthy footnote in the Adom article, aﬁ&
have dealt with them in more detail in a forthcoming art
in the HUCA on The Westerm Boundary of Edom.

Helen is still in the Gereral Hospital, and now esrns
fifty one cents a day. She comes home about three times a week
for a couple of hours,and has every other week end off. Helen
Joine me in sending you and Ruth and ghe children and the rest
of the School our warmest greetings.



